MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, MONDAY, OCTOBER 15TH, 1928 AT 8:00 P.M.

Present: His Worship Mayor Morden Alderman Anderson Alderman Bridgman Alderman Cartwright Alderman Tolmie Alderman White Alderman Wilson

The Minutes of the Regular meeting of Council, held Monday, October 1st, 1928, copies of which had previously been furnished each member of Council, were taken as read, with the following exception under the heading "Tenders" on page 369 of the Minute Book, that the resolution in paragraph 1 on "Tenders" for Coal" should read as follows: Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the lowest tender be accepted, namely that of the B.C. Coal Co., at a price of \$9.50 per ton. With that correction the Minutes were, on motion of Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Tolmie, adopted.

Correspondence was received, read and dealt with as follows:

From Winifred Groundwater, drawing attention to the dangerous condition of 25th Street from Chesterfield Avenue to Jones Avenue, and stressing the need for an arc light at the corner of 25th Street and Mahon Avenue.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the condition of the street be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer for report, and that Winifred Groundwater be advised that a light had been authorized and would shortly be installed at the corner of 25th Street and Mahon Avenue.

From Ethel Gill, applying for a continuation of the sidewalk from Lot 4 to 8, Block 14, D.L. 273, on the south side of 6th Street between Queensbury Avenue and Sutherland Avenue.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer for report.

From Sister Mary Amy Superior, St. Paul's School, applying for a street light at the corner of Forbes Avenue and 5th Street.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the application be referred to the Fire and Light Committee for report.

From the B.C. Municipal News, asking for an expression of opinion from Council on the usefulness in the Municipal life of the Province of that publication.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the communication be referred to the Publicity Committee for consideration and reply.

From the Canadian Legion, T.B. Section, thanking Council for the privilege of tagging in the City and on the Ferries on September 29th, 1928. Filed.

From the Catholic Women's League of Canada, applying for the privilege of conducting a "Tag Day" in the City and on the Ferries on Saturday October 27th, 1928, benefit of the "Catholic Hostel for Girls".

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that permission be granted provided the date is available.

From the City Solicitor and Clerk reporting on the question of the removal of the Quong Hob Laundry, 1st Street East, stating it was one of policy for the Council to order its removal if it so desires. The letter stated it would be inadvisable to inject into the proceedings any bargain with Mr. Boag, who proposed building on the adjoining westerly lot if the laundry was removed.

Mr. Boag being present requested permission to address the Council. It was moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that Mr. Boag be heard.

After the matter had been discussed, Alderman Bridgman moved, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the communication be laid on the table along with Mr. Boag's application to build, and that before the next meeting of Council the Clerk and Solicitor look into the Laundry Bylaw and ascertain what the exact position of the City is in view of the many changes in regard to this particular laundry.

From J.D. Siddons, Convener of the Sports Committee of the North Vancouver High School, requesting that a Committee from the Parent Teachers Association be heard with regard to providing a Sports field in block 216, D.L. 545.

The delegation comprising Mrs. Duncan, Principal McLeod, Mr. Siddons, and Mr. Hewitt, were on motion of Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Anderson permitted to address the Council. The different speakers laid emphasis on the present difficult of providing a suitable playground for the pupils at the High School near to the School, and thought that on account of the accessibility of Block 216 an arrangement could be made with the City whereby a portion of the Block could be set aside exclusively for recreation purposes and therefore be available for the pupils attending the High School. It was explained to the Delegation that the matter was under consideration by the Parks Committee, and had been referred to the City Engineer to bring in a report on the cost of putting one half of the Block in shape for the purpose desired by the Delegation, and the other half in shape for putting Greens and Tennis Courts. The idea being to use the east end for High School and other athletics and that terracing be done towards the west or Lonsdale side of the Block, either as a civic enterprise or by some other arrangement.

Pending that report it was moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that he request of the Delegation be laid on the table until the next regular meeting of Council, when it was hoped members of the School Board and delegation would be present. From the Local Branch of the Army and Navy Veterans Association requesting that the customary arrangements be made by the City for the Armistice Memorial Service on Sunday, November 11th, 1928.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the same principles of cooperation be adopted as in former years, and that a wreath be purchased, and that the Mayor lay the wreath on the Cenotaph on behalf o the City.

From the Secretary of the Board of Police Commissioners, requesting Council to consider the advisability of installing a set of public weight scales in the City. Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole for consideration.

From A.S. Billings, 50 Lonsdale Avenue, stating that he is prepared to convey for the sum of \$25.00 Lot "A" between Lots 5 and 6, 27 and 28, Block 118, D.L. 274, being a portion of the lane in the block between St. George's and St. Andrew's Avenues, provided the City takes care of the expense of conveyance and registration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the offer of Mr. Billings to convey the described 20 x 100 feet, comprising Lot "A" be accepted at the price of \$25.00 and that the Treasurer be authorized to issue a cheque for that amount on conveyance to the City.

From the City Building Inspector, reporting the approximate value of the building formerly known as The North Vancouver Hotel as \$4,000.00, now occupied by Cedars Lumber Yards Ltd., on lease from the City.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the communication be received and field.

From the City Building inspector reporting on the poor condition of the roof of the building formerly known as the "Pavilion", recommending that the offer of the Cedars Lumber Yard Ltd., be accepted, they do supply the labour to do the work, provided the City supply the roofing material required, at an approximate cost of \$60.00.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the recommendation of the Building inspector be adopted, and that the necessary repairs be carried out.

From the City Solicitor, under the date of October 11th and 15th, reporting at length on the condition of Titles to lane in Block 2, D.L. 273.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that copy of the two letters be mailed to Mr. Henderson, one of the petitioners, to show that everything possible had been done in this matter.

From Ellis-Cotton Ltd., registering a protest that they had not been given an opportunity to submit a proposal for the paving of St. George's Avenue to 1st Street from Esplanade, also submitting a proposal for paving the same thoroughfare.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the communication be referred to the Committee of the Whole for consideration.

From the Treasurer of the Western association for the Blind, stating that Mrs. B. Mallin, a City inmate of the Pandora Home for the Blind had gone to Mile Seventy, Cariboo, to live there with her son. In this connection a letter was read from the City Relief Officer, stating that the son was capable of supporting his mother, and recommending that the allowance of \$20.00 per moth made by the City in the case of Mrs. Mallin be not granted, unless she returned to the Pandora Home.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that ht recommendation of the City Relief Officer be adopted, and that no further monthly contribution be made on her account to the Western Association fort he Blind until the City is advised that she has returned to that Institution.

From J.W. Fugler, requesting that deductions from this salary as a contributor to the Superannuation be made at the rate of 8% effective October 1928.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that future contributions be made at the rate of 8% provided Mr. Fugler qualified as to age under the Act.

From F.H. Clendenning, President of the Shipping Federation of B.C. suggesting that a small Committee of Council meet with their executive on Wednesday MORNING, October 17th, in the Federation Hall, corner of Dunlevy and Railway Streets re the arrangements of a Longshoremen's Union in North Vancouver.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that His Worship the Mayor nominate a Committee to attend.

The Mayor nominated the industrial Committee and himself to attend. (Mayor Morden, Alderman Bridgman, Alderman White and Alderman Tolmie).

From the Secretary of the Harbour Board stating that everything is being done to carry on the work of the Subway as fast as possible.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Board of Harbour Commissioners be advised that the Council appreciate the reply to their letter, but they cannot agree that the work is being pushed forward with the greatest possible rapidity while the Contractor is working a limited number of men and shifts on the job.

From the Secretary of the Harbour Board with a memo from the Harbour Master stating that the Commissioners Bylaw in regard to Rat Guards on mooring lines is being enforced on the north Shore.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that a copy of the Harbour Master's memo and Commissioners Bylaw be furnished to the Police Department and that the Chief of Police be asked to see that the provisions of the Bylaw are being enforced on the North Shore.

From the Wrigley Directories Ltd., stating that they have recently been appointed by the Provincial Government at Victoria, to undertake the securing of the Census of Cities and Municipalities, where desired, throughout the Province, and quoting prices that have been accepted by the Inspector of Municipalities at which they are prepared to undertake the work.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the communication be referred to the Committee of the Whole for consideration.

From the City Engineer reporting that he does not consider Lots 22 and 23, Block 141, D.L. 274, the south west corner of 3rd Street and St. George's Avenue a desirable location for conducting the business of a wood yard.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the communication be referred to the Committee of the Whole for further consideration.

From Macrae and Duncan, Barristers, Vancouver, on behalf of the B.C. Plate Glass and Insurance Co. of Vancouver, recite several cases of window breakages on Esplanade in consequence of operations in connection with the construction of the Tunnel.

A copy of the reply by the Clerk to their letter was also read.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the steps taken to date be approved, and that any further correspondence on this subject be referred to the City Solicitor.

From Crehan, Mouat and Co. reporting on:

a. Schedule of Agreements of Sale payable to the City of North Vancouver, which Agreements terminated on or before September 24th, 1928, and at that date remained unsatisfied.

b. Schedule of Mortgages receivable by the City of North Vancouver in respect of Mortgage Loans made under the authority of the Better Housing Act.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the report be referred to the Finance Committee.

Speaking to the report on behalf of the Finance com, it was moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that every purchaser holding an Agreement for Sale from the City on which the payment on principle is overdue be given, without prejudice, a thirty-day notice to liquidate their indebtedness, failing payment that the y arrange to convey the property back to the City by Quit Claim Deed, also that in respect to the Mortgage loans due under the Better Housing act that a meeting of the Finance Committee be arranged to examine them and report back to Council.

From the City Clerk with attached reports from the Heads of the following Departments:

City Clerk	Building Inspector
City Treasurer	Ferry Superintendent
City Engineer	Fire Department
City Assessor	

Re Council resolution passed October 1st.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the communications be referred to Committee of the Whole for consideration.

From the City Solicitor enclosing a letter received by him from Davis, Pugh, Davis, Hossie, Ralston and Lett; on behalf of the B.C. Mills, Timber and Trading Co., stating that unless the slope of the bank on the Low Level Road is made in accordance with the Agreement of 13th July 1927, and the City Engineer issues a certificate to that effect, their Client is entitled to be indemnified either by the City of North Vancouver or the Harbour Board against any damages arising from material falling from the bank, their Client also required satisfactory assurances from the Harbour Board or the City that the intakes and drains will be cleaned out, and not only under the proposed road and rightof-way, but from points of intake to the outlets, and will be maintained in that condition.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that as the terms of the letter received from the B.C. Mills Timber and Trading Company's Solicitors, are at variance with the understanding arrived at in the agreement reached at a meeting between the Board of Harbour Commissioners, a Committee of the City Council, and Mr. E.W. Hamber, with a covering letter advising him that the letter of Davids, Push, Davis, Hossie, Ralston and Lett represents, in the opinion of Council, a difference in the understanding arrived at the joint meeting of July 19th, 1928.

From Alice E. Newman, applying to have the roadway opened on 29th Street, to Lots 5 and 6, Block 240, D.L. 545, to provide access for a car.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer for report.

From the City Engineer stating that the cost of macadamizing the East side of Lonsdale Avenue from 19th to 21st Streets to a width of 21 feet, including sub drainage, is estimated at \$2600, it would also cost an equal sum to macadamize the east side of Lonsdale Avenue from 21st to 23rd Streets.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the City Engineer be instructed to proceed this year with the macadamizing of the east side of Lonsdale Avenue from 19th to 23rd Streets and that the payment of the work be made from Road Construction Bylaw Funds (No. 807).

From the City Fire Chief, reporting for his Depa4tment for the month ending September 30th, 1928. Stating that the department had responded to 18 alarms in connection with which there was a total risk of \$2800, Insurance carried amounted to \$1400, and the total fire loss for the month \$1100.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the report be reviewed and filed.

From Mrs. Amy Smith, $376 - 20^{th}$ street West, requesting that a ditch be provided for drainage purposes in the lane at the rear of her property.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer for report.

From J.V. McLeod, Principal of the North Vancouver High School, requesting that a representative of the Students Council be heard regarding reduced rates on the City Ferries for the School Students Athletic Teams.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that Mr. Norman Phillips, President of the Students Council for the High School be heard.

Mr. Phillips requested on behalf of the Students Council that 2000 ferry tickets be placed at the disposal of the different High School teams at a reduced rate for the present school year.

Alderman Bridgman, pointed out that a as public carrier the "Ferries" could not legally grant reduced fares, and therefore moved, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the application be referred to the Committee of the Whole for consideration.

From the City Treasurer asking authority to pay the Pacific Great Eastern Railway Co., \$224.50 being passenger receipts for the month of September 1928.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the account be ordered paid and the Treasurer authorized to issue a cheque therefore.

From the North Vancouver hospital Board, requesting that the sum of \$15,000.00 be paid to the Hospital Board of Management on account of the construction charges of the new Hospital.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Treasurer be authorized to issue a cheque in favour of the Board of management of the North Vancouver Hospital for the sum of \$15,000.00 to Building Fund Account.

From A. Clare and two others, drawing attention to the bad condition of the roadway at Eastern Avenue, and petitioning for a street light at the corner of 21st Street and Eastern Avenue.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the application to have the lane ditched be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer for report, and that the application for the street light be referred to the Fire and Light Committee for report.

From F.C. Clement Brown, $356 - 4^{th}$ Street East, expressing the opinion that the action of Council in deciding that a nuisance had been created at his premises by the keeping of Foxes was based on a wrong assumption. He filed a statement signed by 21 resident neighbours to the effect that the foxes kept by him did not in their opinion, constitute a nuisance. In a second letter, Mr. Brown indicated in a closing paragraph that it may be the wish of Council to provide compensation to him for any resulting loss should he have to remove the Foxes.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the communication and the statement be referred to the Committee of the Whole.

INQUIRIES

Alderman Tolmie enquired when a report would be forthcoming on the cost of establishing a pumping station for a City owned water service to the higher levels of the City, more particularly the Tempe Heights section.

The City Engineer stated that he would submit same the next regular meeting of Council.

DUE ACCOUNTS

Reports and recommendations by the Finance, Police, Schools, Board of Works, Waterworks, Ferry, Fire and Light, Health and Parks Committees, on due accounts were submitted by the respective Chairmen and read to the meeting and the Treasurer was authorized to pay the accounts to the amounts following:

Finance	\$282.04	
	<u>900.99</u>	\$1,183.03
Police		\$179.95
Schools		\$1,653.10
Board of Works	\$2247.99	
	<u>2170.46</u>	\$4,418.45
Waterworks	\$3316.06	
	<u>2427.20</u>	\$5,743.26
Ferry	\$607.03	
	<u>2358.50</u>	\$2,965.53
Fire & Light		\$1,972.44
Health	\$140.00	
	<u>668.79</u>	\$808.79
Parks	\$155.22	
	<u>316.98</u>	\$472.20

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the Finance Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the City License Inspector be authorized to refund the sum of \$5.00 to R.S. Dunn on the following grounds:

A wood and truck license for the current period was granted to McCarthy and Dunn, three days after the license was issued Dunn sold out to Kidd who paid another license not knowing Dunn had already paid his share of the license.

RECOMMEND that the City Treasurer at the next meeting bring in a detailed report of all Committee expenditures to September 30th, 1928.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the following report of the Board of Works Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the application of Mr. M. Pigou to have the lane opened at the rear of Lot 16, Block 230, D.L. 546, from St. Andrew's Avenue be granted at an estimated cost of \$50.00.

RECOMMEND that the application to clear and grade the lane in Block 14, D.L. 550, from Moody Avenue eastward a distance of 150 feet to the boundary of Lot 16 be granted at an estimated cost of \$60.00.

RECOMMEND that the application to have the lane opened on the North side of 3rd Street between St. Patrick's Avenue and St. David's Avenue be not approved in view of the Engineer's estimated cost of \$250.00 to open the centre portion of the lane, access to the rear of all property in the lane is now available.

RECOMMEND that the proposed construction of a sidewalk on the north side of 21st Street between Chesterfield Avenue, at an estimated cost of \$500.00 be referred to the 1929 estimates.

The amount of funds available under the Board of Works allowance not being sufficient to carry out the work at this time.

RECOMMEND that the application of E.N. Copping on behalf of Mr. J.M. Smith, owner of Lots 18 and 19, Block 40, D.L. 47, be granted to have lane extended by clearing and grading a distance of approximately 150 feet, at an estimated cost of \$50.00.

RECOMMEND that the application of N. Billyeald of 437 Williams Avenue be granted to have Williams Avenue repaired between 14th and 15th Streets. The question of the sidewalk being laid over, as there is already a wooden sidewalk to the property in question.

RECOMMEND that the application of Joseph Ward be granted, to have the sidewalk on the north side of 25th Street between Lonsdale Avenue and St. George's Avenue repaired where necessary.

RECOMMEND that the application of G.M. Brown of $4579 - 5^{\text{th}}$ Avenue West, Point Grey, be granted to have the lane opened and graded between Keith Road and 14^{th} Street from Forbes Avenue, westerly a distance of approximately 300 feet, at an estimated cost of \$150.00.

RECOMMEND that the application of Chas. Gross of 83 Chesterfield Avenue be granted, to have the lane opened at the rear of Lot 11, Block 119, D.L. 274, a distance of 100 feet, at an estimated cost of \$30.00.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the following report of the Water Works Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the necessary steps be taken to insure that a temporary water supply pipe to the office of the Burrard Dry Dock Company be properly protected to prevent stoppage of water supply through freezing.

RECOMMEND that the application of the Vancouver Drydock & Salvage Co. Ltd. Esplanade West be granted for a six inch water connection to their property to be used for fire purposes only, and that the necessary precautions be taken to see that the connection is not used for any other purpose. The Fire Chief reported that the connection would be of service to the City in protecting property in that vicinity.

RECOMMEND that the City Engineer bring in a report stating the number of water connections that have been made for fire purposes along the waterfront and if in his opinion the method of sealing the connections is quite satisfactory for the City's protection.

The City Engineer reported that with the present number of men working on the pipe line from Rice Lake, the work should be completed on or about December 24th, 1928.

RECOMMEND that the Committee be given power to act in the matter of increasing the number of men on the job if suitable help is available and an increase number of men can be profitably employed.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the following report of the Ferry Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the paving of the wooden portion or decking of the bridge approach on the North Shore be laid over, pending the testing of "Mastipave", a surface treatment now being tried out by the Ferry Superintendent.

Alderman White drew attention to a leak on the upper deck on the Port side of Number 2 Ferry, which the Superintendent said was receiving his attention.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the Fire and Light Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that a Boundary Light be installed at 14th Street and Williams Avenue, approximately 150 feet east of Hendry Avenue, provided the District Council agrees to share half the cost.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the following report of the Parks Committee be adopted;

RECOMMEND that the application of James Chapman, Manger of the Capilano Football Club, for the use of Mahon Park Oval on alternate Saturday afternoons during the Football season be left in the hands of the Parks Committee with power to act.

RECOMMEND that the application of William Logan, Secretary-Manager of the North Vancouver "Blue Birds" Football Club, for the use of Confederation Park on alternate Saturday forenoons at 11 a.m. during the football season for their home games in the Vancouver District juvenile Football Association be left in the hands of the Parks Committee with power to act.

RECOMMEND that the estimate of the City Engineer for the cost of rough grading Block 216, D.L. 545, at a price of \$8000 to \$10,000 and the placing of two streams underground in the form of a storm sewer at a price of \$3200 be laid over, and that the Engineer be asked to submit to Council at the meeting of November 5ht another estimate of cost for putting half to eh Block in a condition similar to Confederation Park to be used for recreation purposes and athletic purposes, and the other half of the block in condition for Putting Greens or tennis courts, the estimate to be complete so that a Bylaw can be drawn up and submitted to the Ratepayers if that is decided upon. The Clerk to notify the Secretary of the School Board that Council will be pleased to have a delegation of that Body to attend the next meeting of Council, so that the project can be clearly defined and understood by all parties concerned.

RECOMMEND that Jack Loutet and Co. be asked to submit to the next regular meeting of Council, in writing, details of the proposal to lease and develop on a rental basis Block 216, or a portion thereof, along the lines recently discussed by Mr. Loutet with members of the Parks Committee.

Mr. C.A.L. Payne was permitted to address the Committee on behalf of the executive of the North Shore Cricket Club. He stated that although the work asked for would not be required to be done until next year, the Cricket Club would like to know the intention of Council as soon as possible so that they could arrange during the winter months for a series of Social Affairs to cover the financial arrangements made necessary by the additional obligations that would rest with the Club. After hearing Mr. Payne the Committee recommended that the proposals be further considered by the Parks Committee and a report made at the next regular meeting of Council.

The redressing of the Cricket Pitch on Boulevard Park, at an estimated cost of \$50.00.

Establish four practice pitches west of the playing field on Boulevard Park, estimated cost \$100.00.

Improved accommodation for players and better sanitary arrangements at Boulevard Park, estimated cost \$200.00.

Provision by the City of a Mower, Roller and Water Hose for the use of the Cricket Club at Boulevard Park.

MOTIONS

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman White that with the illustrated map which he has prepared and all the information which he has collected, Mr. McKenzie be requested to complete his report in connection with the revision of the assessment of the City by 30th November next, in order that the report may be received and dealt with by the present members of the Council.

Alderman Tolmie in speaking to the motion, expressed the opinion that the present Council having inaugurated a revision of the Assessment, should take the responsibility during its lifetime for any changes that might be made in the assessment as the result of Mr. McKenzie's work.

It was moved in amendment by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson that Mr. A.R. McKenzie bring in a progress report on assessment revision at November 30th, 1928 and that a request be now made to Mr. McKenzie asking him to see that every effort is put forward so that the work he now has in hand will be completed by December 31st, 1928. If overtime is necessary to complete the work by the end of the current year Mr. McKenzie to be paid for same on the basis of \$15.00 per day.

Alderman Bridgman in speaking to the amendment expressed the opinion that it would not be good business on the part of Council to unduly hurry Mr. McKenzie in his very important work, but was fully satisfied that the work was being done in a thorough manner, and that the City would received full value for the money that the Revision would cost. The interim report asked for at the end of November would, no doubt, clearly indicate to Council if Revision could be safely completed by the end of this year.

Voting for the amendment: Alderman Bridgman, Alderman Anderson, Alderman Cartwright and Alderman Wilson.

Voting against the amendment: Alderman Tolmie and Alderman White.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the City Engineer bring in a report showing the portions of his time taken up by his duties as City Engineer, and also a Supervising Engineer of the District of North Vancouver, the District of West Vancouver and the Burrard Inlet Tunnel and Bridge Company.

Alderman Tolmie stated the motion should not be considered in the light of criticism of the City Engineer, but his attention as an Alderman had so repeatedly been drawn to the matter that he though Council, for its own protection, should have the information on file.

City Engineer Hanes said the report would be forthcoming at the next regular meeting of Council.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that quotations be asked for locally and in the east, for the printing of the following ferry tickets:

60 or 120 bundles of 250 sheets each	10 for 25¢ children's tickets	
300 reels of 1000 each, Vehicle "B"	25¢ tickets	
100 reels of 1000 each, "Passenger Auto"	25¢ tickets	

BYLAWS

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Highways Dedication Bylaw No. 2, 1928" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Highways Dedication Bylaw No. 2, 1928" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Highways Dedication Bylaw No. 2, 1928" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Highways Dedication Bylaw No. 2, 1928" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver First Church of Christ Scientist Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver First Church of Christ Scientist Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver First Church of Christ Scientist Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver First Church of Christ Scientist Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" be now read a third time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1928, No. 98" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 997.

Voting for: Mayor Morden, Aldermen Bridgman, Anderson, Cartwright, Tolmie, White and Wilson.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver School Conveyance Bylaw 1928 Repealed Bylaw 1928" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 998.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Railway Construction Authorization Bylaw 1928" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 999.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Highways Dedication Bylaw No. 4, 1928" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 1000.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver St. Agnes' Church Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 1001.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver St. Agnes' Church Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 1002.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver First Baptist Church Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Tolmie and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 1003.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver St. Edmunds Church Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 1004.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver St. Stephens' Presbyterian Church Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 1005.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver St. John's Church Taxation Exemption Bylaw 1928" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered, be now finally adopted, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 1006.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Messrs. Chamberlain and Squair attended in support of their application for the assignment of the Heywood Auto Camp Lease from William Fred Jenkins, carrying on business as the "Kingsway Barbecue Co." to themselves and William Fred Jenkins. It was explained that the proposed assignment represented a change in name rather than a change of Lessee. Messrs. Chamberlain and Squair were formerly members of the Kingsway Barbecue Co., which had now disposed of its place of business on Kingsway to other interests and the parties concerned were now to devote their time to Heywood Auto Camp.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Clerk write to the Municipality of South Vancouver and find out if the business record of the Kingsway Barbecue Co. was approved by that Municipality, if a reply was in the affirmative Council agrees to the execution of an assignment of the Lease.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that this Council do now resolve itself into Committee of the Whole. Alderman Cartwright was appointed Chairman.

IN COMMITTEE

IN COUNCIL

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the above report of the Committee of the Whole be adopted.

Moved by Alderman Tolmie, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the meeting adjourn.

Whereupon the meeting adjourned.

Signed: G.H. Morden, Mayor